

## 1. NAME

This non-profit organisation which constitutes a voluntary association with general members and which is hereby constituted will be called:

### ***Radiance Foundation***

(hereinafter called “the Association”)

## 2. PREAMBLE

The Association’s main objectives are to make a difference and improve the quality of lives of individuals and groups in the Western Cape by assisting them to live healthy lives and reach their full potential. The Radiance Foundation aims to drive and support meaningful projects in collaboration with prominent role players dedicated to these values.

We envisage a community where people have access to optimum health benefits and educational and career opportunities to enable them to lead healthy and productive lives.

We want to provide rays of hope and light and are striving for a world where everyone can experience healthy and fulfilled lives.

We are committed to delivering the highest industry standards for the administration of projects, and will ensure that donations for projects are legally and ethically handled.

## 3. OBJECTIVES

The Association is a non-profit organisation established for the following public benefit objectives:

- 3.1. The Association’s main general objectives are to make a difference and improve the quality of life of individuals and groups in the Western Cape by assisting them to live healthy lives and reach their full potential which will be embodied in practical improvements like cataract surgery and the like.
- 3.2. To promote and publicise the objectives of the Association, by way of advertisements and otherwise.



FOUNDATION  
A RAY OF HOPE

- 3.3. To provide relevant services and support to suitable individuals in the Western Cape by way of inter alia cataract surgery to preserve and restore sight and prevent blindness and visual impairment.
- 3.4. To promote and raise awareness for the benefits in quality of life provided by cataract surgery and treatment of other related eye diseases and their conditions.
- 3.5. To liaise, interact, exchange and collaborate with other organisations with similar objectives as this Association, while promoting sound professional and legal relationships.
- 3.6. To be affiliated to any other organisation as may be decided upon by the Association from time to time, by way of collaborative partnerships to serve the interests of visually impaired individuals residing in the Western Cape.
- 3.7. To liaise and cooperate with local, provincial and regional bodies involved in the funding, promotion, distribution and development of social awareness in respect of living healthy lives by means of inter alia eye surgery, educational projects and career driven initiatives.
- 3.8. To create dialogue with provincial government departments in the interest of improving the quality of life for individuals in the Western Cape.
- 3.9. To offer advice, support and assistance to suitable individuals that qualify for the improvement of quality of life in the Western Cape, through a network of families and other interested parties.
- 3.10. To stimulate research into the epidemiology, treatment and prevention of conditions associated with diseases affecting the eye.
- 3.11. Building long-term capacity to answer the needs of the blind into the foreseeable future.
- 3.12. To broaden the knowledge base of all affected by substandard living conditions.
- 3.13. To create awareness of the skills, capacities and abilities of persons with visual impairments to enhance their chances of having sufficient career opportunities to better their quality of life.

- 3.14. To add to the quality of life by providing emotional, nutritional, educational and career support and lifestyle improvements for the benefit of those directly affected by substandard living conditions
- 3.15. The Associations' secondary objectives are:
  - 3.15.1. To raise funds to effectively achieve the above objectives
  - 3.15.2. To organise sponsors, subsidies and grants to support the public benefit objectives.
  - 3.15.3. To promote and to protect the interests of the Association and its members, to encourage co-operation and deal with all such matters as may affect the common interests of the members.
  - 3.15.4. To promote, support or oppose as may be deemed necessary any legislative or other measures affecting the interests of the Association and its members.
  - 3.15.5. To enforce expeditiously the strict compliance by its members of the provisions of this Constitution.

#### **4. LEGAL STATUS**

The Association is a body corporate with its own legal identity which is separate from its office-bearers and members. The Association will continue to exist even if the members change.

#### **5. TAXATION OF ASSOCIATION**

The Association may apply to the Commissioner for the South African Revenue Service for approval as a Public Benefit Organisation in terms of section 30 of the Income Tax Act. Upon approval the provisions set out in Schedule B shall bind the Association.

## **6. INCOME AND PROPERTY**

- 6.1. The organisation will keep a record of everything it owns.
- 6.2. Members and office-bearers have no rights in the property or other assets of the Association solely by virtue of their being members or office-bearers.
- 6.3. The income and property of the Association shall be used solely for the promotion of its stated objectives and shall not be paid or distributed directly or indirectly to any person, or to any member of the Association or office-bearers, except as reasonable compensation for services actually rendered to the Association or reimbursement of actual costs or expenses reasonably incurred on behalf of the Association.

## **7. POWERS OF ASSOCIATION**

The Association shall have the same powers as that of a company under the Companies Act, as amended. Such powers include:

- 7.1. To institute or defend any legal or other proceedings and to settle any claims,
- 7.2. To prudently invest funds of the Association,
- 7.3. To buy, attain, maintain, manage, lease, sell, or in any way deal with property and assets of the Association,
- 7.4. To donate and transfer the property and assets of the Association to public benefit organisations with similar objectives,
- 7.5. To borrow and to use the property or assets of the Association as security for borrowing,
- 7.6. To execute any act or deed in any deeds registry, mining titles or other public office.
- 7.7. To exercise all the management and executive powers ordinarily vested in the Board of Directors of a Company, and
- 7.8. To carry out all the powers and authority of the Association in South Africa and in any other part of the world.

## 8. THE GOVERNING BOARD

- 8.1. Powers: The Governing Board shall manage the affairs of the Association in accordance with the resolutions of members in General Meeting.
- 8.2. Number and Portfolios: A minimum of five members shall serve on the Governing Board bearing the following portfolios: the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson, the Treasurer, the Secretary and the Vice-Secretary.
- 8.3. Election: All members of the Governing Board shall be members of the Association. The Governing Board shall be elected by the members of the Association at an Annual General Meeting.
- 8.4. Vacancies: The Governing Board must, as soon as reasonable possible, appoint someone to fill any vacancy that reduced the number of board members to less than five. The next General Meeting must confirm the office of any board member appointed, otherwise it will lapse.
- 8.5. Co-option: The Governing Board may co-opt additional non-voting members as it may consider appropriate.
- 8.6. Resignation, Disqualification and Removal: A Governing Board member may resign from office in writing. A Governing Board member shall be disqualified from office upon termination of membership to the Association and becoming incapable by reason of mental illness. A member can be removed from office through a two-thirds resolution of the remaining Governing Board members, consisting of not less than four.
- 8.7. Delegation of Powers: The Governing Board may delegate any of its powers or functions to a committee or member(s) of the Association provided that:
- 8.8. such delegation and conditions are reflected in the minutes for that meeting, at least one Board member serve on the committee, the Board in advance approves all expenditure incurred by the committee or member, and the Governing Board may revoke the delegation or amend the conditions.
- 8.9. Procedures at Meetings: The Governing Board may regulate its meetings and proceedings as it finds fit, subject to the following:

- 8.9.1. The Chairperson shall chair all meetings of the Governing Board.
- 8.9.2. Meetings of the Governing Board may be conducted face-to-face or electronically which would allow Governing Board members to be present and participate through electronic means.
- 8.9.3. If the Chairperson is not present within fifteen minutes of the appointed time of the meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall chair such meeting. In both their absence, the Board members present at the meeting shall elect a chairperson for that meeting.
- 8.9.4. The Chairperson shall convene a meeting of the Governing Board at least every 6 (six) months and at the written request of any two members of the Governing Board.
- 8.9.5. The quorum for a meeting of the Governing Board shall be two-thirds of the serving Governing Board members.
- 8.9.6. If no quorum is present, the Governing Board may make no decision, except to preserve the assets of the Association and to call a meeting of the general members.
- 8.9.7. Each Governing Board member present or represented through written proxy shall have one (1) vote.
- 8.9.8. Questions arising shall be decided by a majority of votes. Should there be an equality of votes the Chairperson shall have a casting or second vote.
- 8.9.9. Proper minutes and attendance records must be kept of all meetings of the Governing Board. The chairperson for the meeting shall sign the minutes which shall be available at all times for inspection or copying by any member of the Association on two days' notice to the Secretary or the Vice-Secretary.
- 8.9.10. A resolution signed by all members of the Governing Board shall be as valid as if passed at a duly convened meeting of the Governing Board.
- 8.9.11. The Governing Board may appoint employees upon such lawful terms and conditions as it may deem necessary.

- 8.9.12. **Conflicting Interests:** Any actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest on the part of any member of the Governing Board, on a matter pertaining to the Association, must be disclosed in writing to the Governing Board which shall record such conflict of interest in the minutes of the Board meeting. Such member may be requested by the Governing Board to state his/her position in the matter or to respond to pertinent questions, but shall not vote or use his/her influence on the matter and shall not be counted for purposes of determining a quorum for the meeting where the voting take place.
- 8.9.13. **Confidentiality:** All matters pertaining to litigation, security measures, contractual negotiations, employment matters and any other matters deemed confidential by the Governing Board, must be treated as confidential and only the actual decisions may be disclosed to the general public.

## 9. MEMBERSHIP

- 9.1. **First and Subsequent Members:** The first members of the Association shall sign Schedule A of this Constitution. The Governing Board may admit natural persons over eighteen [and legal persons] as members to the Association.
- 9.2. **Conditions and Criteria:** The Governing Board may determine the conditions and criteria for membership. Applications for membership that do not comply with such conditions and criteria may be refused by the Governing Board.
- 9.3. **Transfer of Membership:** Membership is not transferrable.
- 9.4. **Register of Members:** The Governing Board must keep a register with the names and addresses of all the members.
- 9.5. **Automatic Termination of Membership:** Membership automatically terminates upon the receipt by the Association of a notification of the death of a natural member or dissolution of an organisational member, and written resignation.

- 9.6. Termination by Governing Board: Membership terminates if a member is removed by a resolution of the Governing Board. Provided that the member has been given an opportunity to make written or verbal representations at a meeting of the Governing Board pertaining to the proposed termination, and the Board's decision to terminate membership was confirmed by resolution of two-thirds of the members present at the next General Meeting, otherwise it will lapse.

## 10. MEETINGS OF MEMBERSHIP

- 10.1. Annual General Meetings: All Annual General Meetings (AGMs) must be held within six months of the Association's financial year-end. At least 21 (twenty one) days' written notice must be given to all members stating the date, time, place and business of the AGM, which business must include:
- 10.1.1. The Chairperson's report,
  - 10.1.2. The presentation of the Association's Annual Financial Statements,
  - 10.1.3. The election of Governing Board members,
  - 10.1.4. The appointment of Auditors, and
  - 10.1.5. Other appropriate matters.
- 10.2. Special General Meetings: The Governing Board or not less than one-third of the members may call a Special General Meeting of the Association. At least fourteen (14) days' written notice must be given to all members stating the date, time, place and business of the Special General Meeting. If the Board fails to give notice within seven days of the request of one-quarter of the members, such members shall be entitled themselves to give notice of and to convene the meeting.
- 10.3. Powers of the General Meetings: The members in a properly convened General Meeting of the Association is the highest decision-making structure of the Association as set out in this Constitution. The members in General Meeting may review, approve or amend any decision taken by the Governing Board but no such resolution of the Association shall nullify any earlier resolution taken by the Governing Board in accordance with the provisions of this Constitution.



- 10.4. Procedures at General Meetings: The Members may regulate their meetings and proceedings as it finds fit, subject to the following:
- 10.4.1. The Chairperson shall chair all General Meetings.
  - 10.4.2. General Meetings of the Association may be conducted face-to-face or electronically which would allow members to be present and participate through electronic means.
  - 10.4.3. If the Chairperson is not present within fifteen minutes of the appointed time of the meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall chair such meeting. In both their absence, the members present at the General Meeting shall elect a chairperson for that meeting.
  - 10.4.4. The quorum for General Meetings of the Association shall be one quarter of the members of the Association.
  - 10.4.5. If a quorum is not present within fifteen minutes of the appointed time of the meeting, the meeting must be adjourned to another date, within fourteen days thereafter. Notice, as provided for under the constitution, must be given to all members of the Association of such adjournment.
  - 10.4.6. If no quorum is present at the reconvened meeting within fifteen minutes of the appointed time, the members present, or represented by proxy, shall deem to constitute a quorum for that meeting.
  - 10.4.7. A resolution put to the vote shall be decided by means of a show of hands or by ballot. A vote by ballot can be demanded by not less than one third the members present, or represented by proxy.
  - 10.4.8. Each member present or represented by proxy shall be entitled to one (1) vote.
  - 10.4.9. Except where this constitution requires a higher threshold, questions arising shall be decided by a majority of votes. Should there be an equality of votes the Chairperson shall have a casting or second vote.
  - 10.4.10. Proper minutes and attendance records must be kept of all General Meetings. The chairperson must sign the minutes which shall be available at all times for inspection or copying by any member of the Association on two days' notice to the Secretary or the Vice-Secretary.

## 11. NOTICES OF MEETINGS

- 11.1. All notices terms of this constitution must be given to members in writing (personally, post or electronic communication) to the address provided by the members.

- 11.2. The accidental omission to address notices to any member shall not nullify the proceedings of any meeting.
- 11.3. A member present in person at any meeting shall be deemed to have received notice of such meeting.
- 11.4. If posted, notices shall be deemed to have been received seven days after posting.

## **12. FINANCES AND REPORTS**

- 12.1. Bank Account: The Governing Board must open a bank account in the name of the Association with a registered Bank.
- 12.2. Signing/EFT: Cheques and other documents requiring signature on behalf of the Association shall be signed by at least two persons authorised by the Governing Board, including electronic fund transfers ('EFT').
- 12.3. Financial year-end: The financial year end of the Association shall be end of February.
- 12.4. Financial Report: The Governing Board must ensure that proper records and books of account which fairly reflect the affairs of the Association are kept, and within six months of its financial year a report is compiled by an independent practicing auditor registered in terms of the Auditing Profession Act stating whether or not the financial statements of the Association are consistent with its accounting records, the accounting policies are appropriate and have been appropriately applied with in preparing the financial statements and the Association has complied with the financial provisions of this constitution.

## **13.AMENDMENTS AND DISSOLUTION**

- 13.1. This Constitution may be amended, the name of the Association may be changed and the Association may be dissolved by resolution of two-thirds of the members present at a General Meeting.

- 13.2. At least 21 (twenty one) days' notice of the Meeting stating the nature of the resolution to be proposed must be given to all the members of the Association.
- 13.3. Upon the dissolution of the Association, after all debts and commitments have been paid, any remaining assets shall not be paid to or distributed amongst members, but shall be transferred by donation to some other nonprofit organisation which the Governing Board (and failing which the members in General Meeting) considers appropriate and which has objectives the same or similar to the objectives of the Association, and should the Association be exempt from the payment of any taxes and duties; (i). Any similar public benefit organization which has been approved in terms of section 30 of the Income Tax Act, (ii). Any institution, board or body which is exempt from tax under the provisions of section 10 (1)(cA)(i) of the Income Tax Act, which has its sole or principal object the carrying on of any public benefit activity, (iii). Any department of state or administration in the national or provincial or local sphere of government of the Republic.

#### 14. INDEMNITY

- 14.1. Subject to the provisions of any relevant law, members, office-bearers or appointed delegates of the Association shall be indemnified by the Association for all acts done by them in good faith on its behalf.
- 14.2. Subject to the provisions of any relevant law, no member of the Association or appointed delegates shall be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other member or office bearer, or for any loss, damage or expense suffered by the Association, which occurs in the execution of the duties of his or her office, unless it arises as a result of his or her dishonesty, or failure to exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill required by law.

This constitution was approved and accepted by members of **Radiance Foundation** at a special general meeting held on 21 July 2014 in Bellville by its founder members listed hereunder.

- Ulrica Stander
- Madeleine Pretorius
- Junet van der Merwe
- Anita Janse van Rensburg
- Izak Smith



FOUNDATION  
A RAY OF HOPE

**SCHEDULE A  
SCHEDULE OF FIRST MEMBERS**

<b>Nr</b>	<b>Name</b>	<b>Address</b>	<b>Date</b>	<b>Signature</b>
1				
2				
3				
4				
5				



## SCHEDULE B

### REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL AS PUBLIC BENEFIT ORGANISATIONS

As provided for in Clause 5 of this Constitution, The Association intends to apply to the Commissioner for SARS for approval as a Public Benefit Organisation in terms of Section 30 of the Income Tax Act. Upon approval the Association shall:

1. Be required to have at least three persons, who are not connected persons in relation to each other, to accept the fiduciary responsibility of the organisation.
2. Ensure that no single person directly or indirectly controls the decision making powers relating to the Association.
3. Is prohibited from distributing any of its funds to any person (otherwise than in the course of undertaking any public benefit activity) and is required to utilise its funds solely for the object for which it has been established.
4. Be prohibited from accepting any donation which is revocable at the instance of the donor for reasons other than a material failure to conform to the designated purposes and conditions of such donation, including any misrepresentation with regard to the tax deductibility thereof in terms of section 18A; provided that a donor may not impose conditions which could enable such donor or any connected person in relation to such donor to derive some direct or indirect benefit from the application of such donation.
5. Ensure that it is not knowingly a party to, and does not knowingly permit itself to be used as part of any transaction, operation or scheme of which the sole or main purpose is or was the reduction, postponement or avoidance of liability for any tax, duty or levy, which, but for such transaction, operation or scheme, would have been or would have become payable by any person under the Act or any other Act administered by the Commissioner.
6. Submit to the Commissioner a copy of any amendment to this constitution.
7. Not pay any remuneration to any employee, office bearer, member or other person, which is excessive, having regard to what is generally considered reasonable in the sector and in relation to the service rendered.
8. Comply with such reporting requirements as may be determined by the Commissioner.
9. Take reasonable steps to ensure that the funds which it may provide to any association of persons as contemplated in paragraph 10(iii) of Part 1 of the Ninth Schedule of the Act are utilised for the purpose for which they are provided.
10. Has not and will not use its resources directly or indirectly to support, advance or oppose any political party.